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THE HON JOSH FRYDENBERG MP 
TREASURER 

Parliament House Canberra ACT 2600 Australia 
Telephone: 61 2 6277 7340 | Facsimile: 61 2 6273 3420 

Ref:  MS21-002957 

Senator the Hon Concetta Fierravanti-Wells 

Chair 

Senate Standing Committee for the Scrutiny of Delegated Legislation 

Parliament House 

CANBERRA  ACT  2600   

Dear Senator 

Thank you for your correspondence of 25 November 2021, on behalf of the Senate Standing 

committee for the Scrutiny of Delegated Legislation (the Committee) regarding the Financial Sector 

Reform (Hayne Royal Commission Response) (Hawking of Financial Products) Regulations 2021 

[F2021L01080]. 

In response to my letter of 22 October 2021, the Committee has sought my advice as to: 

• whether the Corporations Regulations 2001 can be amended to provide that the exceptions set

out in the instrument cease to operate three years after they commence, noting that this would

allow sufficient time for the findings of the ALRC’s review of the Corporations Act to be

finalised and considered prior to the cessation of the provisions; and

• if the measures are intended to be in force for a longer term, whether the exemptions can be

included in primary legislation.

Cessation of provisions after three years 

I reiterate my view that it is not appropriate for these exemptions to cease after three years. 

The permanency of these exemptions within the Corporations Regulations 2001 is appropriate so as 

to give effect to the policy intention that the hawking prohibitions apply only in situations where 

there is a risk of consumer harm. Additionally, repealing the exemptions after three years would 

undermine certainty for businesses that rely on these exemptions, and impose significant 

commercial risks and compliance costs to businesses.  

Inclusion of the provisions in primary legislation 

While I note the Committee’s concerns regarding the inclusion of provisions in delegated 

legislation that exempt persons or entities from the operation of the primary law, in this case I also 

confirm my view that it is appropriate for these exemptions to be included in the Corporations 

Regulations 2001.  
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The Corporations Act 2001 currently provides a broad prohibition on the hawking of products and a 

small number of broad exemptions that apply across financial products. The exemptions set out in 

the Regulations apply in limited circumstances and use a specifically delegated power under 

section 992A of the Corporations Act 2001. 

Specifically, these exemptions relate to the sale or offer of specific financial products, and as such 

apply to a niche and defined group, rather than all persons who are offering to sell or issue financial 

products. For example, the exemption in subregulation 7.8.21A(j) only applies to persons making 

offers to sell or issue a general insurance product to a person who has held a substantially similar 

product in the 30 day period before the offer is made, usually this will be an offer to renew a lapsed 

insurance policy. As such it will not impact all persons offering to sell or issue general insurance 

products. It is my view that setting out enduring exemptions of that nature in the Corporations 

Regulations 2001 is an appropriate use of that regulation making power and was foreseen by the 

Corporations Act 2001. Utilising the Regulations in this manner also allows the Government to 

quickly respond to new and different financial products as required to mitigate the risk of consumer 

harm. 

Additionally, including those exemptions in the primary law would render it unnecessarily 

complicated and negatively affect its usability. This would make it more difficult for businesses to 

understand and comply with their obligations and make compliance and enforcement actions more 

difficult.   

Thank you for bringing the Committee’s concerns to my attention. I trust that this information will 

be of assistance to the Committee. 

Yours sincerely 

THE HON JOSH FRYDENBERG MP 

10 December 2021 
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